COOKS

AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE BOARD OF EDUCATION OTTAWA ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT 141 AND SERVICE EMPLOYEES LOCAL NO. 73

2022-2026

TABLE OF CONTENTS

<u>PA</u>	<u>GE</u>
RECOGNITION1	
2 SALARY1	
B LONGEVITY1	!
3.1 IMRF CREDITABLE EARNINGS LIMITATION1-2	2
PROBATIONARY PERIOD2	!
5 NORMAL WORK WEEK2	?
NORMAL WORKING HOURS2-3	}
7 WORK ATTIRE3	}
3 HOLIDAYS3	}
9 SICK DAY PROVISIONS3-4	ŀ
MEDICAL INSURANCE4-7	7
1. BEREAVEMENT7	7
2 VACANCIES7	7
3 REDUCTION OF FORCE7-8	3
4 SENIORITY8	3
5 CONTRACT MEETINGS	3
6 UNION NOTIFICATION	3
7 SICK LEAVE BANK8-9	•
8 SEIU MEMBER DUES AND COPE 9-10	0
9 DISCIPLINARY PROCEDURES10)
0 GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE10-12	2

1121	SANITATION COURSE	12
1121	RETIREMENT	12
1122	EFFECT OF AGREEMENT	13
1123	BOARD AUTHORITY	13
1124	MILEAGE REIMBURSEMENT	13
1125	NO STRIKE-NO LOCKOUT	13-14
1126	TERM OF AGREEMENT	14
APPE	NDIX A - SALARY SCHEDULE	15

COOKS AGREEMENT

1101 RECOGNITION

This Agreement is entered into by and between the Board of Education of Ottawa Elementary District 141, hereinafter referred to as the "Board" and Service Employees Local No. 73, an affiliate of Service Employees International Union, hereinafter referred to as the Union, as the exclusive negotiating representative for all full-time cooks, assistant cooks and head cook.

Excluded from the bargaining unit are all managerial, supervisory and confidential employees as defined in the Illinois Educational Labor Relations Act.

1102 SALARY

(See Appendix "A")

1103 LONGEVITY

All bargaining unit members with 5 years or more of service shall receive \$.25 added to their hourly wage.

All bargaining unit members with 10 years or more of service shall receive \$.25 added to their hourly wage.

All bargaining unit members with 15 years or more of service shall receive \$.25 added to their hourly wage.

All bargaining unit employees with 20 or more years of service shall receive anyth additional \$.25 added to their hourly wage.

All bargaining unit employees with 25 or more years of service shall receive an additional \$.25 added to their hourly wage.

1103.1 IMRF CREDITABLE EARNINGS LIMITATION

The District shall not increase an employee's creditable earnings for any 12 month period used to calculate the employee's final rate of earnings for purposes of determining the employee's IMRF retirement annuity by more than the greater of:

- a. Six percent (6%); or
- b. One and a half (1.5) times the increase in the Consumer Price Index-Urban as of the previous September.

When determining whether an increase in an employee's creditable earnings exceeds the applicable limitation, the following shall be excluded:

- a. Increases resulting from overload or overtime earnings;
- b. Increases attributable to standard employment promotions resulting in increased responsibility and workload; and
- c. Increases resulting from an increase in the number of hours required to be worked.

The purpose of this provision is to ensure that the District shall not incur any financial penalty pursuant to provision of the Pension Code and/or IMRF rules and regulations.

Notwithstanding any contrary or other provision of this Agreement, including but not limited to any salary schedules, in the event an employee's IMRF creditable earnings would increase by more than 6% or 1.5 times the increase in the CPI-U in any 12 month period during the term of this Agreement, that employee shall only receive the maximum increase allowed under this provision.

1104 Probationary Period

ak ii

New employees will serve a probationary period of sixty (60) calendar days. If a new employee is on a leave of absence of more than fifteen (15) calendar days during the probationary period, his/her probationary period will be automatically extended by an equivalent number of days up to an maximum extension of two (2) months.

During the probationary period, new employees will be ineligible for use of any paid leave other than sick leave.

Upon successful completion of the probationary period, an employee's seniority shall date from his/her most recent hiring date since any break in the employment relationship.

3 02

If an employee fails to complete the probationary period he/she will be subject to termination without recall rights or recourse to the grievance procedure.

1105 NORMAL WORK SCHEDULE

Full-time employees means all bargaining unit employees employed by the District who normally work forty (40) hours per week or more. All full-time school based employees will work a minimum of one hundred eighty nine work days per year.

1106 NORMAL WORKING HOURS

Normal working hours shall be as follows: 6 am to 2 pm, 5 days per week for all full time cooks, assistant cooks and head cooks. The work day shall include one twenty (20) minute paid break which may be scheduled to be coterminous with the employee's lunch break in order to accommodate the unique nature of the cook's work.

Overtime pay (up to 2 hours) can be obtained on days cooking staff is short - handed and/or there is a need for additional work to be completed. Assignment of overtime is at the sole discretion of the Food Service Director.

When employees of the department work short – staffed for an entire day (e.g. 1 or more employees are missing) requiring additional tasks outside of the normal job duties (e.g. unloading supplies from delivery trucks), employees shall be paid an additional \$25 per day. Any Remote/E Learning Days that are used during the year will be added at the end of the school year.

1107 WORK ATTIRE

The Board of Education will furnish each cook with three (3) shirts and pants each year, plus an allowance of \$50 for one pair of work shoes. Shoes must be closed toe, gym shoe type work shoes.

1108 HOLIDAYS

All cooks will have the following days as holidays when they fall on a working day:

Labor Day New Year's Eve Day after Thanksgiving

Veterans' Day New Year's Day

Thanksgiving Martin Luther King Day

Christmas Eve Lincoln's Birthday or President's Day

Christmas Day Good Friday

Should one of these holidays fall on a weekend, the employee shall receive on floating holiday to be used during that school year. Only one employee can use a floating holiday on any given day, and said floating holiday must be scheduled in advance and approved by the supervisor. The Day after Thanksgiving will count as a working day.

1109 SICK DAY PROVISIONS

- 1. All full-time cooks are entitled to 15 days of sick leave yearly. Sick leave shall be interpreted to mean personal illness, quarantine at home or serious illness or death in the immediate family. Immediate family is defined as parents, spouse, brothers, sisters, children, grandparents, grandchildren, parents-in-law, brothers-in-law, sisters-in-law. Up to 2 days of sick leave may be used in quarter increments when, per request, the employee works the remaining hours of the shift.
- 2. PERSONAL LEAVE up to 3 days of the 15 days (or pro-rated number) granted in any one school year may be used for Personal Leave. Personal Leave is defined as that of a nature, which cannot be conducted on any other than a school day. The following guidelines shall be in effect regarding use of Personal Leave.
- a. UNRESTRICTED LEAVE Two personal days per year may be designated as "unrestricted" and the reason for it shall not be requested nor challenged,

however, such days CANNOT be used on days immediately prior to or following a vacation or break. (Break is defined as any weekday when the employee is not scheduled to work for any portion of the day.)

In addition, a request MUST be submitted in writing, on the designed form, to the employee's supervisor at least 48 hours in advance.

Further, should unrestricted leave requests exceed available substitutes, some such leaves may be denied. Denials will be determined on the basis of the date such requests were received by the Administration.

- b. REGULAR PERSONAL LEAVE shall not be used for a vacation, to extend a vacation and/or for recreational purposes in general. A request shall be submitted, in writing, on the designated form and given to the employees' supervisor at least 48 hours in advance. The 48 hour notification for regular personal leave only may be waived in cases of emergency. However, in those situations, the nature of the emergency must be given. A valid, specific reason must be given for regular personal leave and should be such that it can be substantiated by the employee if requested to do so by the Superintendent or his designee.
- 3. PHYSICIAN'S CERTIFICATE The Board of Education may require a physician's certificate as a basis for pay during leave after an absence of 3 days for personal illness, or as it may deem necessary in other cases.

1110 MEDICAL INSURANCE

The Board shall negotiate with the Union on selecting and maintaining a program of Medical/Life insurance for Cooks.

full-time Cooks are eligible to participate in the District's program of health/life insurance. Employees who work a minimum of six (6) hours per day totaling 30 hours per week are also eligible for insurance. The Board shall pro-rate the premium amount for employees who work less than 8 hours per day. In the first year of the contract, the Board will pay up to 50% of the cost of Full Family coverage (based on the cost of the lowest deductible) on behalf of any full-time Cooks eligible and participating in the insurance program. The Board shall pro-rate the premium amount for employees who work less than 6 hours per day totaling 30 hours per week. In subsequent years, the dollar figure shall be no less than in the first year of the contract.

The Board will offer multiple deductible options for Family/Dependent coverage. In addition, employees paying district health insurance premiums may elect to have those premiums sheltered through a plan approved and administered by the District.

If husband and wife are eligible for Board contribution for insurance they shall be carried as a Family Plan with the Board paying the entire premium. The insured's spouse will receive \$10,000 in Life Insurance Coverage. In the event the insured leaves the employ of the District, the remaining spouse is guaranteed coverage under the terms of the policy.

On June 7, 2018, through a Memorandum of Agreement, the Union and Board agreed to implement changes to the District's group health insurance plan as negotiated by the Ottawa Elementary Education Association, IEA-NEA, during the most recent teacher contract negotiations. A summary of those changes is attached hereto as Exhibit A.

The changes to the District's group health insurance plan summarized on Exhibit A became effective on July 1, 2018.

Until June 30th, 2018, husband and wife are eligible for Board contribution for insurance, and they shall carried as a Family Plan with the Board paying the entire/majority of premium until they retire/resign from OES.

Beginning July 1, 2018, married employees from before June 30, 2018 will be grandfathered under the previous contractual language with a majority of the premium covered by the Board of Education. For all other employees, the married provision for the majority of coverage provided by the Board of Education will be eliminated permanently. For the grandfathered employees, the insured's spouse will receive \$10,000 in Life Insurance coverage. In addition for grandfathered employees, in the event the insured's spouse leaves the employment of district, the remaining spouse is guaranteed coverage under the terms of the policy.

Premiums for grandfathered employees will decrease from 100% Board paid in 2017-18 to the following Board paid contributions from one of the grandfathered married employees:

92% beginning in 2022-23

F. As of July 1, 2018, the following changes will occur to the Medical Insurance Program:

Α .	Current	+ Dlan	
м.		ı. Cıan	

Single Insurance Deductible Family Insurance Deductible

2022-23 thru 2025-26: \$1,600 2022-23 thru 2025-26: \$3,200

3

Premium (Board Contribution)

Single Insurance Family Insurance

2022-23 thru 2025-26: 93% 2022-23 thru 2025-26: 47%

Employee/Spouse Insurance Employee/Child(ren)

2022-23 thru 2025-26: 56% 2022-23 thru 2025-26: 63%

Deductibles for Employee/Spouse and Employee/Children) Insurance will be the same as listed above for the Family Insurance.

B. High Deductible Plan

Beginning July 1, 2018, employees will have the option of joining a high deductible plan. Employees who join the high deductible plan may opt out the following year and join the current plan during the open enrollment period; Likewise, employees may opt back into the high deductible plan during the next enrollment period (annually) but are not eligible for another contribution to the HSA. The high deductible plans currently at \$2,800/\$5,600, will reflect the current federal minimum standard.

Single Insurance Deductible Family Insurance Deductible

2022-23 thru 2025-26: \$2,800 2022-23 thru 2025-26: \$5,600

Premium (Board Contribution)

Single Insurance Family Insurance

2022-23 thru 2025-26: 100% 2022-23 thru 2025-26: 47%

One time HSA Board contribution: \$500 One time HSA Board contribution: \$1,000

Employee/Spouse Insurance Employee/Child(ren)

2022-23 thru 2025-26: 56% 2022-23 thru 2025-26: 63%

One time HSA Board contribution: \$1,000 One time HSA Board contribution: \$1,000

Board matching HSA for those moving to high deductible states *begins in the second year of plan enrollment for new enrollees

*begins in the second year of plan enrollment for new enrollee

2022-2023 Single match up \$300; Single + Spouse \$600 Single + Child \$600; family \$600

2023-2024 Single match up \$300; Single + Spouse \$600 Single + Child \$600; family \$600

2024-2025 Single match up \$300; Single + Spouse \$600

Single + Child \$600; family \$600

2025-2026 Single match up \$300; Single + Spouse \$600 Single + Child \$600; family \$600

For those beginning the high deductible plan, in their first year they will receive the contractual one time HSA Board contribution of \$500 for individual and \$1,000 for family in their year, as stipulated in current contract. Members will not receive the aforementioned yearly match in their first year. Match begins at year two in the plan.

Those in the high deductible plan prior to 2022-2023 school year, the Board will match contributions up to the \$300 single and up to \$600 for family per year of the contract.

Dental Coverage 2022-23 – 2025-26 will increase from \$1,000 to the following rates:

2022-2023 \$1,250 2023-2024 \$1,500 2024-2025 \$1,500 2025-2026 \$1,750

Optional vision insurance to be offered, member pays for premium, board pays for administration fees.

1111 BEREAVEMENT

Bereavement Days - Food's Service Employees may take bereavement leave for immediate family, as defined by the Illinois School Code (defined as parents, spouse, brothers, sisters, children, grandparents, grandchildren, parents-in-law, brothers-in-law, sisters-in-law, legal guardians, aunts, uncles, domestic partners and fiancés/fiancées) and inclusive of nieces and nephews. Duration of the leave shall be up to 10 days for a spouse/life partner, child, or parent per incident. All other bereavement requests will be limited to 3 days per incident. Bereavement days do not have to run consecutively. The parties agree that the benefit shall be used in a responsible manner.

1112 VACANCIES

1. All vacancies shall be posted for three consecutive working days so that all employees shall be allowed to bid on them. The Union steward shall receive a copy of each job posting. If no bargaining unit member applies for, or is the most qualified candidate for a posted position, the District may fill the position from outside the bargaining unit. When an employee transfers to another position within this bargaining unit, there shall be a 90 day probationary period. At the end of said period, the employee may revert back to the previous position or the Superintendent may return the employee back to her original position.

1113 REDUCTION OF FORCE

Section 1: NOTICE TO UNION. In the event the Board determines that there will be a reduction in the number of Food Service employees, it will notify the Union and the affected employee at least thirty (30) days prior to termination.

Section 2: Reduction shall be done on a seniority basis. Should an employee designated for termination or reduction of hours have more seniority than other employee in her classification, that employee may bump the least senior person in that classification. The classifications shall be Head Cook, Assistant Cook and Cook.

Section 3: RE-EMPLOYMENT. In the event that a position becomes available in the classification within twelve (12) months of the termination due to a reduction in force, former employees shall be given first option for said position, provided they have qualifications for the available position. Offers shall be made on a seniority basis. A

former employer is deemed to have waived all rights to recall if she fails to contact the Superintendent's office within seven (7) days after mailing of the employment offer.

Any employee re-employed within the recall period shall be entitled to the same number of accumulated sick days which she had prior to termination. An employee so re-employed shall be paid the contract wage rate for her classification and experience.

1114 SENIORITY

When an employee successfully completes their probationary period that employee's seniority will start from date of hire. In the event the district has to reduce staff, the reduction will take place of the laving off the least senior cook(s).

1115 CONTRACT MEETINGS

A contract administration meeting may be scheduled monthly between representatives from the cooks union and the Superintendent or his designee to discuss matters of concern. The meeting will be arranged at a time mutually satisfactory to the parties.

1116 UNION NOTIFACTION

Within ninety (90) days of the start of each school year, the Union shall be notified in writing by the District the following:

- a) Hirings, including the name, address, work locations, and classification;
- b) Terminations, including designation of "voluntary" or "involuntary";
- c) Transfers and/or promotions that have occurred within the prior ninety (90) days;
- d) A complete seniority list including name, classification and work locationally

1117 SICK LEAVE BANK

·K

A sick leave bank shall be established to provide sick leave benefits to Educational Support Personnel (non-certificated employees) who incur a prolonged illness or injury. Any member of the Educational Support Personnel staff may be a member of the sick leave bank, so long as they enroll within 10 days of their initial employment with the school district. Each member initially enrolling in the bank shall donate 2 day's sick leave to the bank. Additional day(s) will be donated any time the bank falls below 100 days.

A member withdrawing from membership in the bank shall not have any contributed days refunded.

Membership in the bank is automatically terminated upon effective dates of resignation, retirement, dismissal or a leave of absence. Persons rejoining the staff will be assessed only the current year's donated day(s), if any.

The first 20 days of absence shall not be covered by the bank, but must be covered by the member's own accumulated sick leave, or absence without pay. A member shall not

be eligible to draw on the bank until the member has depleted all accumulated sick leave days. Following the 20th day of absence, or the expenditure of accumulated leave days as indicated above, whichever is later, a member may apply for use of the sick leave bank. A maximum of 60 days from the sick leave bank may be used during any one school year by any member for a single illness or injury. Such days of absence need not be continuous.

No member shall draw upon the sick leave bank in two successive years, unless they shall render service for at least 60 school days prior to the drawing from the bank the second year.

Members withdrawing such leave days from the bank shall not be required to repay those days. A member shall be entitled to draw from the bank provided that the member is personally ill or injured, or submits a physician's certificate that the member's absence is necessary due to the illness of a member of the immediate family as defined in the School Code of Illinois. Members on Maternity Leave or Workman's Compensation shall not be eligible for sick bank coverage. Complications from Maternity Leave may be covered by the Bank, if recommended by the review committee and approved by the Board of Education.

Applications for sick bank coverage are to be submitted to the Superintendent for review by the special committee, comprised of four Educational Support Personnel (one selected by each Association and one selected by the non-affiliated members) and an administrator. If the administration declines, the committee will be comprised of the four Educational Support Personnel. Applications shall state the cause for the absence and expected dates of the leave. The applications shall be accompanied by a note from the attending physician which clearly confirms the illness and the expected recovery period.

It will be the member's responsibility to prove an elective surgery could not be taken care of incorporating vacation time or during summer break

The employee shall be responsible for authenticating the claim of illness or injury and the committee shall be responsible for ascertaining the eligibility of the employee to draw on the bank. The decisions of the committee shall be final and not subject to the grievance and/or arbitration procedure. Neither the employees nor the Union shall hold the Board or its officials and employees, including but not limited to the Superintendent and the other members of the sick leave bank committee, liable for any decisions made by the committee. The Union and the employees agree to hold harmless and indemnify the Board and its officials or employees, including but not limited to the Superintendent and the other members of the sick leave bank committee, from and against any claims, damages, or legal actions regarding decisions by the committee and/or arising out of or related to the sick leave bank.

1118 SEIU MEMBER DUES AND COPE

The Employer agrees to deduct from the pay of those members who individually request it voluntary contributions to the SEIU Local 73 COPE Fund. The Union shall notify the Employer of the per pay period amount that is to be deducted. Such

amounts shall be remitted to the Union every pay period.

Recognition of Web-Based Sign-Ups. The Union will provide to the Employer verification that the employee has authorized dues deductions. Employees may express such authorization by submitting to the Union a written membership application form, through electronically recorded telephone calls, by submitting to the Union an online form authorization (Web Based Sign Up) or by any means of indicating agreement allowable under state and federal law.

The Employer agrees to deduct from the pay of those members who individually request it voluntary contributions to the SEIU Local 73 COPE Fund. The Union shall notify the Employer of the per pay period amount that is to be deducted. Such amounts shall be remitted to the Union every pay period.

1119 DISCIPLINARY PROCEDURES

It shall be the responsibility of the District to bring to the attention of any bargaining unit deficiencies in said employee's work program or performance of any assigned work and, in writing, make a record of such conference. One copy of said record shall be provided to said employee. Upon the employee's written request, a record of disciplinary action shall be removed from the employee's personnel file after 2 years provided there has been no disciplinary action against the employee for the same or a similar infraction and provided the original infraction did not result in removal (suspension) from work.

Discipline will be for just cause. The District shall follow progressive disciplinary action as outlined below. However, the District reserves the right to impose a level of discipline appropriate to the conduct at issue for serious offenses without regard to whether prior less serious disciplinary action have been taken. The District shall have the right to determine the sequence for the following steps depending on the merits of each circumstance and will administer discipline in a timely fashion.

Se.

u br

ties,

;5:

The Steps shall be as follows:

- 1. Verbal warning
- 2. Written warning
- 3. Three day suspension
- 4. One week suspension
- 5. Termination

Copies of all such written correspondence and disciplinary action(s) shall be provided to the employee. A copy of any disciplinary action(s) shall also be sent to the Union Representative.

1120 GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE

A grievance shall be defined as any alleged violation of a specific section(s) of this Agreement.

Step 1: In the event a bargaining unit believes that there has been a violation of this Agreement, the employee shall present the grievance to the immediate superior within 15 calendar days of the date of the employee first knew or should have known of the condition upon which the alleged grievance is based. The first step shall be informal.

Step 2: If the grievance is not resolved informally, the grievant shall then submit the grievance in writing, on a mutually agreeable form, to the Superintendent of Schools. The parties shall meet as soon as possible to resolve the grievance. Within 15 calendar days after the grievance is submitted to the Superintendent, he shall render a decision in writing on the grievance. In Step 2 and Step 3, the grievant shall have right to union representation.

Step 3: A grievant may proceed to Step 3 if not satisfied with the decision of the Superintendent within 15 calendar days of having received the Superintendent's decision. The grievant shall present the grievance to the School Board at the next regularly scheduled meeting of the Board. Within 15 calendar days of hearing the grievance, the School Board shall render a decision in writing on the grievance.

Step 4: If the grievance is not satisfactorily resolved at Step 3, the grievance shall proceed to binding arbitration.

The Union shall submit to the Superintendent, a written request on behalf of the Union and the grievant to enter into binding arbitration. This request must be submitted within twenty (20) days of receipt of the Superintendent's denial or the grievance shall be deemed to have been waived.

Arbitration Proceedings

1777

The Union shall, within thirty (30) work days of the date of its written notice, advise the Federal Mediation and Conciliation Service in writing (with a copy of the Employer) of its desire to arbitrate the grievance and request a list of seven (7) arbitrators, all of whom must be members of the National Academy of Arbitrators. Within five (5) work days from the issuance of the list of arbitrators, the Union shall contact the Employer and the parties shall select an arbitrator. The selection of the arbitrator will occur in the following manner: The Employer and the Union shall first attempt to agree on an arbitrator. If the parties cannot agree on an arbitrator, the parties shall select an arbitrator by alternating the striking of names until only one (1) arbitrator is remaining. The Parties shall determine who shall strike the first name by a flip of a coin. The Union and the Employer shall contact the arbitrator within five (5) work days of his/her selection to schedule a hearing.

Expenses for the Arbitrator's services shall be borne equally by the Board and the Union.

The decision of the Arbitrator shall be final and binding on the parties. The Arbitrator, in his opinion, shall not amend or modify, nullify, ignore or add to the provisions of the Agreement. The Arbitrator's authority shall be strictly limited to deciding only the issue or issues presented to him in writing by the Board and the Union and his decision must

be based solely and only upon his interpretation of the meaning or application of the express relevant language of the Agreement.

Participation

The Board acknowledges the right of the Union grievance representative to participate in the processing of a grievance at any level, and no employee shall be required to discuss any grievance if the Union's representative is not present.

No reprisals shall be taken by the Board or the Union against any employee because of the employee's participation or lack of participation in a grievance.

1121 SANITATION COURSE

Each employee will have the opportunity to apply for a State of Illinois Sanitation Certificate. The Director of Food Service will specify the location and time for the course to be attended. The Board of Education shall pay the cost of tuition and required text material only for the class offered by the District. If the employee is unable to attend the class due to limited seating, medical absence, delay of direction by the Director of Food Service and/or designees, the course opportunity will be made available for the next session. If an employee does not successfully complete the course the first time, that employee will be afforded another chance to receive a sanitation certificate at his or her own cost.

The District shall pay the cost of all initial and refresher courses offered in the District by an Illinois State Certified Instructor. Employees shall be paid their regular hourly straight time wage rate for all time attending the course and refresher course offered in the separate to District and taking the test in the District if applicable. The District shall also pay the recertification fees.

1122 RETIREMENT

An employee shall be eligible for a six percent (6%) bonus in her final twelve (12) months of employment under the following conditions:

- 1) The employee is at least 55 years of age with at least 10 years of service with the School District; and
- 2) Eligible employees shall notify the Board or designee in writing of his/her intention to retire by June 1 of the year previous to the retirement year.

All percentage increases designated in this provision shall be calculated on the employee's hourly rate from what was reported to IMRF in the month preceding the beginning of the first month of the employee's final twelve (12) months. All percentage increases shall be subject to the IMRF Creditable Earnings Limitation as set forth in Section 1103.1 of the Collective Bargaining Agreement.

1123 EFFECT OF AGREEMENT

The parties mutually agree that the terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement represent the full and complete understanding and commitment between the parties.

The Agreement may be altered, changed, added to, deleted from, or modified only through the voluntary mutual consent of the parties in an amendment hereto during the duration of this Agreement.

The specific provisions of this Agreement shall supersede any Board policy or administrative guidelines which shall be contrary to said provisions.

Should any article, section or clause of this Agreement be declared illegal by a court of competent jurisdiction, then that article, section or clause shall be deleted from this Agreement to the extent that it violates the law. The remaining articles, sections and clauses shall remain in full force and effect.

It is mutually understood between the parties hereto that all powers, rights, authority, duties and responsibilities of the Board are conferred upon and vested in it by the statutes of the State of Illinois, and the Union agrees and consents that such statutes and any amendment, revision or repeal thereof, take precedence and shall automatically release the Board from any commitment set forth in the Agreement, to the extent that such commitment is in violation of the law.

1124 BOARD AUTHORITY

The determination and administration of school policy, the operation and management of the schools and the direction of employees are vested exclusively with the Board. It is the suty of all employees to carry out the policies and sogulations as stipulated by the Board, so long as they do not conflict with terms of this Agreement.

The decision of the Board in matters pertaining to the determination and administration of school policy, the operation and management of the schools and the direction of employees shall be final.

1125 MILEAGE REIMBURSEMENT

Employees shall be paid the current IRS rate per mile when using their own vehicle for official business.

1126 NO STRIKE-NO LOCKOUT

1. The Union will not cause or permit its members to cause, and will not sanction in anyway, any work stoppage, strike, picketing or slowdown of any kind for any reason, or the honoring of any picket line or other curtailment, restriction or interference with any of the Employer's functions or operations.

2. The Employer agrees that it will not lock out its employees during the term of this Agreement.

1127 TERM OF AGREEMENT

This Agreement shall remaining full force and effect from July 1, 2022 until June 30, 2026. This Agreement shall expire at such expiration date unless it is extend for a specific period or periods by mutual written Agreement of the parties, or is replaced by a Successor Agreement.

In witness whereof, the parties heretofore have caused this Agreement to be signed by their respective representatives on the 19th of Tuley 2012

SEIU LOCAL 73

BOARD OF EDUCATION

PRESIDENT

APPENDIX A

SALARY SCHEDULE

STEP	2022-2023	2023-2024	2024-2025	2025-2026
0	13.00	14.00	15.00	15.53
1	13.26	14.08	15.25	15.78
2	13.54	14.36	15.55	16.09
3	13.81	14.65	15.85	16.40
4	14.08	14.95	16.15	16.72
5	14.36	15.25	16.45	17.03
6	14.65	15.55	16.75	17.34
7	14.95	15.85	17.05	17.65
8	15.25	16.15	17.35	17.96
9	15.60	16.40	17.70	18.31
10	15.95	16.75	18.05	18.66

The head cook shall be paid a stipend of an additional \$1.00 per hourstor completion of the duties of head cook.

Any employee performing the duties of the Head Cook, due to an absence of the Head Cook for a period of more than 5 school days, shall receive the \$1.00 per hour Head Cook stipend for each work day that employee performs the duty of Head Cook. Only one individual shall receive the Head Cook stipend each day.